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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT

To The Members of MLR AUTO LIMITED
Repoit on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of MLR AUTO LIMITED (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 315t March, 2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for
the year ended on that date, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act, (*Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 315t March, 2024, and its loss, total comprehensive
loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (*SAs")
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report,
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“"ICAI"”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

« The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Director’s report is expected to be made available
to us after the date of this auditor's report.

« Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

s« In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

« When we read the Director’s report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we
are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance as required under SA 720
& ‘The Auditor’s responsibilities Relating to Other Information’.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to
liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.i
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of
any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
financial controls that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 315 March, 2023, were audited by another
auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 4t May, 2023.

Our opinion on the financial statements is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books except for, not keeping backup on a daily basis
of such books of account maintained in electronic mode in a server physically located in India
(refer Note 36(i) to the financial statements), and for not complying with the requirement of audit
trail as stated in (i)(vi) below.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 315t March, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31t March,
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith,
is as stated in paragraph (b) above.i
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g)

h)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid/payable by the
Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of
the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

V. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not proposed
final dividend for the year.

vi. Based on our examination, the Company has used accounting software for maintaining
its books of account for the financial year ended 31t March, 2024 which is operated by
a third-party software service provider. In the absence of an independent auditor's
service organisation report covering the requirement of audit trail, we are unable to
comment whether the audit trail feature of the said software was enabled and operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions, recorded in the software or whether
there were any instances of the audit trail feature been tampered with (refer Note 36(ii)

3 of the financial statements).i
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As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from
April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention
is not applicable for the year ended 315t March, 2024.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(F.R.N. 17366W/W100018)
—_— e,

Sumit Trivedi ‘l)

Partner B"

Membership No. 209354
i UDIN: 24209354BKEEQS6983

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 3 May, 2024
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ANNEXURE “A"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of MLR AUTO
LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 315t March, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on the internal control with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “"Guidance Note”) issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.Z
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at
31t March, 2024, based on the criteria for internal financial control with reference to financial statements
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(F.R.N. 117366W/W100018)

G Hoin s

Sumit Trivedi
Partner
j Membership No. 209354

UDIN: 24209354BKEEQS6983
Place: Hyderabad
Date: 31 May, 2024
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ANNEXURE "B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of

even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state
that:

(i) (a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, capital work-in-progress.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment and capital work-in-progress were physically verified
during the year by the Management which, in our opinion, provides for physical verification
at reasonable intervals. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us
and based on the examination of the registered sale deed/ conveyance deed provided to us,
we report that, the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings,
are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

In respect of immovable properties of land, the original title deeds are lodged with another
party. Based on the examination of photocopies of title deeds and other records, we report
that title deeds are in the name of the Company (Refer footnote given in Note 4 of the financial
statements).

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible
assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company
as at 31st March 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) The inventories except for goods-in-transit and stocks held with third parties, were
physically verified during the year by the Management at reasonable intervals. In our
opinion and based on information and explanations given to us, the coverage and
procedure of such verification by the Management is appropriate having regard to the size
of the Company and the nature of its operations. For stocks held with third parties at the
year-end, written confirmations have been obtained and in respect of goods in- transit,
the goods have been received subsequent to the year end or confirmations have been
obtained from the parties. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each
class of inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories/alternate
procedures performed as applicable, when compared with the books of account.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, at any point of time of the
year, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital facility from banks or
financial institutions and hence reporting under clause (ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(iif) The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security, and
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year, and
hence reporting under clause (iii) of the Order is not applicable.

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees or
securities and hence reporting under clause (iv) of the Order is not applicable.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits.
0 Hence, reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable.z
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(a)

(b)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

()

(a)

(b)

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified for the activities of the Company by
the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

In respect of statutory dues:

Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’
State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax,
cess and other material statutory dues applicable to the Company, have been regularly
deposited by it with the appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident
Fund, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax,
cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 315t March 2024 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited
as on 31t March, 2024 on account of disputes are given below.

Name of Nature of |Period to Forum Amount Amount

the theDues Which the where involved unpaid

Statute Amount Dispute is (in¥ (in T lakhs)
Relates Pending lakhs)

Goods & Tax, Interest |FY 2017-18 to Appellate 49.47 45.15

Service Taxland penalty [2021-22 Authority

Act, 2017

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered
or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961)
during the year.

In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings
or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
Government or any Government authority.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the Company
were, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the loans were
obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-
term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the
Company.

The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the year and
hence, reporting under clause (ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the year and
hence, reporting under clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause (x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

The Company has made private placement of shares during the year. For such allotment of
shares, the Company has complied with the requirements of Section 42 and 62 of the
Companies Act, 2013, and the funds raised have been, prima facie, applied by the Company
during the year for the purposes for which the funds were raised, other than temporary
deployment pending application. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or

Ji private placement of (fully or partly or optionally) convertible debentures during the yeari
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(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(a)

(b)

(9

(a)

(b)

(a,b,c)

(d)

V3

8¢

To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year.

To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year.

As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is
not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for
all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the
size and the nature of its business.

We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the year and
covering the period upto December 2023.

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with any of its directors or directors of it's holding company, subsidiary companies or persons
connected with such directors and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act,
2013 are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c¢) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Group does not have any CIC as part of the group, and accordingly reporting under clause
(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to ¥ 2,673.36 lakhs during the financial
year covered by our audit and %2,477.47 lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year and we
have taken into consideration the issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing
auditors.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions
(Refer Note 35 of financial statements), nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating
that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as
and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The Company was not having net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, or turnover of
rupees one thousand crore or more or a net profit of rupees five crore or more during the
immediately preceding financial year and hence, provisions of Section 135 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the
Order is not applicable for the year.z
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The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures requiring it to
prepare consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xxi) of the

Order is not applicable.

(xxi)

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(F.R.N. 117366W/W100018)

G Hrincl

Sumit Trivedi \>
Partner Bﬁ,
Membership No. 209354
i UDIN: 24209354BKEEQS6983

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 3" May 2024
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MLR AUTO LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024

(Rs. in Lakhs)

For Deloltte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

g&v\-:- HV‘.

L Sumit Trivedi
== Partner
Hyderabad

Date: 3rd May 2024 angalore

\

Hyderabad

Note Asat As at
No. 31st March 2024 315t March 2023
ASSETS
1 |Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 1,301.48 1,183.59
{b) Capital work-in-progress 4B 3.96 -
{c) Intangible assets 4A 854.77 86.20
{d) Intangible assets under development 4C 11.55 1.74
() Financial assets
{i) Investments 5 - 0.13
{ii) Other financial assets 6A 23,57 21.88
{f) Other non-current assets 7A 259.80 280.29
Total non-turrent assets 2,455.13 1,573.83
2 |Currgntassels
{a) Inventories B 1,245.81 813.69
{b) Financial assets
(i) Trade recelvables 9 71.52 4327
{il) Cash and cash equlvalents 10 348.26 118.63
{iil) Other financial assets 68 330.18 4.72
{c) Other current assets 78 308.54 230.14
Total current assets 2,304.31 1,210.45
|ruta| Assals 4,759.44 2,784.28 |
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equlty share capltal 11 8,740.39 7,235.39
{b} Other equity 12 (16,848.21] (13,849.39
Total Equity [7,707.82) 16,614.00)
LIABILITIES
1 |Non-current liabllities
{a) Financial llabilities
{i) Borrowings 13A 1,300.00 5,646.74
{il) Other financial liabilities 14A 46.00 907.33
{b) Provisions 15A 3775 22.53
Total nan-current liabilities 1,383.75 6,576.60
2 |Current Nabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i} Borrowings 138 5,296.74 650.00
{ii) Trade payables
- Total gutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 52551 56.63
enterprises . 17
- Total outstanding dues of creditor's other than micro 197345 570,37
enterprises and small enterpfises
{itl) Other financial Habilitles 148 2,797.74 1,146.46
{b) Pravislons 158 134.24 40.05
(c) Other current llabilities 16 355.83 358.17
Total curvent liabifities 11,083.51 2,821.68
Total liahilitites| 12,867.26 9,398.28
Total Equity and Liabilities 4,759.44 2,784.28
See ace ing notes to the financial st
As per our repart attached Forand on behalf of Board of Directors

/ \

Date: 30th April 2024

Jatind Dighe
Chief Financial Officer

Date: 30th April 2024
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Nirmal NR

Wholetime Director & CEO
DIN: 10039675

Bangalore

Date: 30th April 2024

Saurabh Jaln
Company Secretary
Hyderabad

Date: 30th April 2024




MLR AUTO LIMITED

statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2024

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
Note | 3jctMarch2024 | 31stMarch2023
Income
| |Revenue from operations 18 8,622.59 444418
it |Other income 19 27.90 85.18
m |Total Income (8 +11) 8,650.48 4,529.36
iV |Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 20 7,255.39 4,038.73
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in progress 21 39.70 (237.39)
Employee benefits expense 22 983.34 B33.76
FInance costs 23 853.65 751,51
Depreciation and amartisation expense 24 294.92 152.83
Other expenses 25 2,189.64 1,619.24
Total expenses (V) 11,616.64 7,1559.68
v |Loss before exceptional items and tax {1-1v) (2,966,15| (2,630.32)
V| |Exceptional items 26 (37544 -
Vil |Loss before tax (V-V} (2,580,71 (2,620.32)
VIl |Tax expense
Current tax .
Deferred tax . -
Total tax expense (Vi) - "
1X |Loss for the year (Vil - VHI) {2,590,71) {2,630.32)
X |Other comprehensive income
{1} tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of the defined bene6it plans 8.11 (6.60)
Other comprehensive income/({loss) for the year (X) 8.11 (6.60)
Xi |Total Comprehensive loss for the year (1X + X) {2,598.82) {2,623.72)
X1l |Earnings per equity share (EPS) : 29
A. Equity shares of Rs. 10 each
Basic (3.03) (3.64)
Dlluted {3.03) (3.64)
8. Class A Equity shares of Rs. 1 each
Basic (0.30)
Diluted (0.30)
See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Selis LLP
Chartered Accountants

g»vv\—; Hw'm—.—-’_"‘ \J

Pored. i

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

e

Nirmal NR
Wholetime Directar & CEQ

N Sumit Trivedi K Vljdya Kumar

~  Partner Chairman
Hyderabad DIN: 06630397
Date: 3rd May 2024 Bangalore

Date: 30th April 2024

Jatindra Dighe

Chief Financial Officer
Hyderabad

Date: 30th April 2024

DIN: 10039675
Bangalore
Date: 30th April 2024

S

Saurabh Jain
Company Secretary
Hyderabad

Date: 30th April 2024
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MLR AUTO LIMITED
statement of cash flows for the year ended 31st March 2024

{Rs. in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
31st March 2024 | 335t Margh 023
Cash Nows from operating acthviiles
Loss before tax {2.590.71) (2,630.32)
Adjostrients for:
Flnance costs B53.65 751.51
Interest Income (25.63) (0.89)
Depreclation and amortisation expense 294,92 15283
Loss on sale/scrop of Property, plant and equipment (net) 111 -
Provislon far doubtful trade recelvables written back {2.26) -
Investments written-off 0.13
Non-Compete fee -
Trade advances written-back (375.44)
Recounry fram Allowance for doubtiul debts -
'Emunilm belore wod-lni ailmchﬁs {1.834.23]
Adjusiment for movements inwatking capital;
{l )/Decrease In Trade lvabl {25.99)
{Increasa}/Dacrease in Inventorles (432.12)
{Increase)/Dacrease In Other assets {35890)
Increase/{Decrease) in Trade payables 1,871.97
increase/(Decrease) in Pravisions & Other fabllivies 696.36
nyed erztion:

(Cath flow fram Investing activities
Purchase of Progerty, plant and equipment and Intanglbles {1,206.26)|
Purchuse of intangible assets and Intangible assets under development -

Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipmant .
Interest recelved 25.50
11,180.76]
Caih Nlows from financing activities
Praceeds from tssue of Equity shares {Refer note 11) 1,505.00 .
Proceeds from Borrowings 1,300.00 1,380.00
Repayment of Barrawlngs (1,000.00) .
Payment of fees for Increase In Authorized capltal B (22.50)
Finance cost {285.66) {215.44)
1,51934 1,142.06
Nt increéase In cash and cash equivalents [A+B+C) 223.64 6875
cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 118.63 49.88
348.26 118.63 |

riotas:
1. The above Cash Flow Statement hes been prepared under the "Indirect mathad" as set outin the Indian Accounting Standard
(1ned A5 -7)- Statement of Cash Flows.

2. fieconcliiation of llabilittes from finaac) 1Rz, In Lakhs)

W &

Asat Asat
Particuiars 315t Mysch 3023 Proceads Repayment 385t March 2024
5,136.74 1,300.00 559674
{Rs. In Lakhs)
ARAY Praceeds Repayment Asat
It March 2072 g PRYMENY | 35t March 2023
Borrawings [Current and Non-currant] 481674 1,380.00 - 6,236.74
i
’S« zecampanying notes to the financlal stalements 4
s per our reportattached Far and an behalf of Bopfd of Directors
Far Delaltte Haskins & Sefls LLP
Chartered Accountants i
sumit Trivedi S ¥ Vijaya Kdmar Nirmal NR
Fartnor Chalimal Whaletime Directar & CEQ
:vdeub;:ﬁ 202 CHARTERED ‘ll DIN: ﬂ|5630597 OIN: 1?039575
ate: Ird May 20 M7 Bangalore Bangalore
ACCOUNTAN / Date: 30th Aprll 2024 Date: 30th Aprii 2024
JJP
Jatindhd Dighe Saurabh Jaln
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Hyderabad Hyderabad
Date: 30th April 2024 Date: 30th Aprll 2024
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MLR AUTO LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2024

Equity share capital

(Rs. In Lakhs)

ber of shares Amount
Balance as at 1st April 2022 72,353,933 7,235.39
Add: Equity shares allotted during the year . -
Balance as at 31st March 2023 72,353,933 7,235.39
Add: Equity shares allotted during the vear 36,915,271 1,505.00
Balance as at 31st March 2024 109,269,204 8,740.39

Other equit

Date: 30th April 2024

Jatindra Dighe

Chief Financial Officer

Hyderabad

Date: 30th April 2024

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Reserves and surplus (Refer note 12)
General Reserve Secur.itles Retained Earnings e
Premium
Balance as at 1st April 2022 1,411.17 1,970.98 (14,585.32) (11,203.17)
Loss for the year - - (2,630.32) (2,630.32)
Fees for increase in Authorized capital (22.50) - {22.50)
R ts of the defined benefit plans . . 6.60 6.60
Balance as at 31st March 2023 1,411.17 1,948.48 {17,209.04) (13,849.39)
Loss for the year - B {2,550.71) (2,590.71)
R ements of the defined benefit plans - . (8.11) (8.11)
Balance as at 31st March 2024 1,411.17 1,948.48 {19,807.86) {16,448.21)
See accompanying notes to the financial statements
As per our report attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For Deloitte Haskins & Selis LLP /
Chartered Actountants 7
' . s
SO = S A \ / \
Sumit Trivedi K Vijayad Kumar Nirmal NR
Partner Chalfman Wholetime Director & CEQ
Hyderabad DIN: 06630397 DIN: 10039675
Date: 3rd May 2024 Bangalore Bangalore

Date: 30th April 2024

Wf

Saurabh Jain

Company Secretary

Hyderabad

Date: 30th April 2024




MLR AUTO LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

1. General Information:

MLR Auto Limited {“the Company”) is engaged in the business of manufacturing and sale of
three-wheeled Vehicles & its Spares. The Company has manufacturing facility located in India
at Survey No.354, Automotive Park, Muppireddypally, Medak, Telangana — 502 336.

The Company is subsidiary of Greave Electric Mability Private Limited.
2. Summary of Material Accounting Policies
2.1 Statement of compliance:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards {Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

2.2. Basis of preparation and presentation:

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.

Falr value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into
Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other that quoted prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.




MLR AUTO LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

2.3. Revenue recognition:

Revenue is recognised when contral of the goods, services are transferred to the customer at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services, regardless of when the payment is being made.
Revenue is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration), taking
into account contractually defined terms of payment. However, Goods and Services tax (GST)
are not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added
to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from
revenue.

Revenue from sale of goads is recognised when control of the goods is transferred to the
Customers. Revenue in respect of service is recognised in the accounting year in which the
services are performed in accordance with the terms of contract with customers. Revenue
towards satisfaction of a performance obligatian is measured at the amount of transaction
price {net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction
price of goods sold, and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of
various discounts and schemes offered by the Company as part of the contract.

Interest income:

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefit will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable.

2.4. Foreign currencies:
(i) Functional and presentation currency

items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which these entities operate (i.e. the “functional
currency”). The financial statements are presented in INR, the national currency of India,
which is the functional currency of the Company.

(ii) Transaction and balances

Transactions in foreign currency are translated into the respective functional currencies using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the respective transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at the exchange rates prevailing at reporting date of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the statement of profit and loss and
reported within foreign exchange gains/ (losses). Also refer note 2.2.

HARTERED |
COUNTANTS) (-



MLR AUTO LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at
historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction. Foreign
currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis. This includes changes in the fair value
of foreign exchange derivative instruments, which are accounted at fair value through profit
ar loss.

2.5. Borrowing cost:

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such assets till such time the asset is
ready for its intended use or sale. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs
are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

2.6. Government Grants and subsidies:

Government grants and subsidies are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that
the grant or subsidy will be received, and all attached conditions will be complied with. When
the grant or subsidy relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed. When the grant or subsidy relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal
amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

2.7. Employee benefits:
Defined Contribution Plans:

The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under provident fund
schemes defined contribution plans, in which both employees and the Company make
monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the employees’ salary. The contributions
are paid to the respective Regionat Provident Fund Commissioner and the Central Provident
Fund under the State Pension scheme. There are no other obligations other than the
contribution payable to the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner and the Central Provident
Fund under the State Pension scheme.

Defined Benefit Plans:

For defined benefit retirement plans (i.e. gratuity and ex-gratia) the cost of providing benefits
is determined using the projected unit credit method, with independent actuarial valuations
being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Re-measurement, comprising
actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling and the return on plan
assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately in the statement of financial position with
a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur.




MLR AUTO LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

e service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses
on curtailments and settlements);

e net interest expense or income; and

e re-measurement.

Compensated Absences:

Compensated absences which accrue to employees and which are expected to be availed
within twelve months immediately following the year end are reported as expenses during
the year in which the employee performs the service that the benefit covers and the liabilities
are reported at the undiscounted amount of the benefit, and where the availment or
encashment is otherwise not expected to wholly occur within the next twelve months, the
liability on account of the benefit is actuarially determined using the projected unit credit
method.

2.8. Taxation:
Current tax:

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
“profit before tax” as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxahble or
deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Unrecognised deferred taxes are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting year.




MLR AUTO LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as
current tax. The Company recognizes MAT credit available as deferred tax asset only to the
extent it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of MAT
credit to be utilised during the specified period, i.e., the period for which such credit is allowed
to be utilised.

Current and deferred tax for the year:

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.9. Property, plant and equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost or its deemed cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, If any. Cost includes expenditures directly attributable
to the acquisition of the asset.

Cost includes inward freight, taxes and expenses incidental to acquisition and installation, up
to the point the asset is ready for its intended use.

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment is provided under the written down value
method over the useful life of the assets. Leasehold building improvements are written off
over the period of lease or their estimated useful life, whichever is lower, on a straight-line
basis. Residual value of the assets is estimated at 5% of cost. The useful lives of the assets of
the Company are as follows:

Asset Useful lives

Furniture & Fixtures 3-10years
Plant & machinery 10 - 15 years
Office equipment 5-10 years

The useful life is assessed based on technical advice taking into account the nature of the
asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating condition of the asset, past history of
replacement, maintenance support etc.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on de-recognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item} is included in the profit or foss in the period in
which the item Is derecognised.

The estimated useful life and residual value is reviewed at the end of each reporting period,




MLR AUTO LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

2.10. Lease:

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract s or contains a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

At the date of commencement of a lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU
assets”) and a corresponding lease liability for all leases, except for short term leases and low
value leases. Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease
before the end of the lease term. Lease payments to be made under such reasonably certain
extension options are included in the measurement of ROU assets and lease liabilities. ROU
assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the asset’s useful life or the lease period
whichever is shorter.

Lease liability is measured by discounting the lease payments using the interest rate of the
incremental borrowing. Lease liabilities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to
the related right-of-use asset if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise an extension or a termination option.

Impairment of ROU assets is in accordance with the policy for impairment of non- financial
assets.

The company has opted for exemption provided under Ind AS 116 for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets, hence the lease payments associated with those leases are treated
as an expense on a stralght-line basis over the lease term.

2.11. intangible assets:
Intangible assets acquired separately:

Own developed intangible assets are capitalised at actual cost. Cost includes all expenses
incurred for development of the intangible asset, up to the point the asset is ready for its
intended use.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately or own developed are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and residual value is reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted foron a prospective basis.

Derecognition of intangible asset:

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognised.




MLR AUTO LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year anded 31st March 2024

Useful life of intanglble assets:
Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows:

New product development 5 years
Software 3 years

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill:

Property, Plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite life are evaluated for
recoverability whenever there is any Indication that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount {i.e. higher of the fair value
less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the
asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets.
In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit (CGU) to
which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset {or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

2.13. Inventories:
Inventories are valued, after providing for obsolescence, as under:

e Raw materials, stores, spares, packing materials and traded goods at weighted
average cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower.

s Work-in-progress at lower of weighted average cost including conversion cost or net
realisable value, whichever is lower.

e Finished goods at lower of weighted average cost including conversion cost or net
realisable value, whichever is lower.

2.14. Exceptional item:

Significant gains / losses or expenses incurred arising from external events that is not
expected to recur are disclosed as Exceptional item.

2.15. Provisions:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.




MLR AUTO LIMITED
Nates to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

2.16. Warranties:

Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations are recognised at the date of sale of
the relevant products, at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the Company’s obligation.

2.17. Financial instrument:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, an initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acguisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair vaiue through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss. However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component are measured at transaction price.

Financial asset:

o Financial assets at amortised cost - Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. They are presented as current assets, except for
those maturing later than 12 months after the reporting date which are presented as
noncurrent assets.

Financial assets are measured initially at fair value which usually represents cost plus
transaction costs and subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment loss if any. Financial assets at amortised cost are
represented by trade receivables, security and other deposits, cash and cash
equivalent, employee and other advances. The Company subsequently measures all
equity investments other than investments forming part of subsidiary at fair value.

o Financial assets at Fair Value through Profit and loss (FVTPL) - Financial assets other
than the equity investments and investment classified as FVTOC! are measured at
FVTPL. These include surplus funds invested in mutual funds etc.

« Impairment of financial assets - The Company assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’)
and that loss event {or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

CHARTERED

ACCOUNTANTS




MLR AUTO LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

Financial liabilities:

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost or at FVTPL. Financial
liabilities such as derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument are
classified as at FVTPL. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognized in the statement of profit and loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in the statement of profit and loss is included in the ‘other income /
expense' line item. Financial liabilities that are not held for trading and are not designated as
at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost.

De-Recognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities:

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive benefits have expired or been
transferred, and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
of such financial asset. Financial liabilities are derecognized when the liability is extinguished,
that is when the contractual obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.

2.18. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

o a present obligation arising from a past event, when it is not probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation

e apresent obligation when no reliable estimate is possible, and

e a possible obligation, arising from past events where the probability of outflow of
resources is not remote.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements, but are disclosed where an
inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
updated / recognised as appropriate.

2.19 Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the Chief operating decision maker. The Chief operating officer of the Company has been
identified as being the chief operating decision maker.

2.20 Statement of Cash flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted
for the effects of Transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future
operating cash receipt ar payments and item of income or expense associated with investing
or financing cashflows. The cash flow from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated.




MLR AUTO LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

2.21 Earnings per share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33 on
Earnings per share. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividend and attributable
taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average nu mber of shares outstanding
during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive
potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they
have been issued at a later date. In computing the dilutive earnings per share, only potential
equity shares that are dilutive and that either reduces the earnings per share or increases loss
per share are included.

2.22 Operating cycle

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between
acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has
determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and
liabilities as current and non-current.

2.23 Critical accounting judgements:

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in note 2, the
management of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and assaciated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

In the following areas the management of the Company has made critical judgements and
estimates:

e Employee Benefits:

The present value of the defined benefit obligations depends on a number of factors
that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost {income) for post employments plans
include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying
amount of such obligations.
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The Company determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This
is the interest rate that shouid be used to determine the present value of estimated
future cash outflows expected to be required to settle the defined benefit obligations.
In determining the appropriate discount rate, the Company considers the interest
rates of government bonds of maturity approximating the terms of the related plan
liability.

s Useful lives of property, plant and equipment & intangible assets:

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment & intangible
assets at the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in
depreciation expense in future periods.

e Provision for warranty:

The Company gives warranties for its products, undertaking to repair or replace the
items that fail to perform satisfactorily during the warranty period. Provision made at
the year-end represents the amount of expected cost of meeting such obligations of
rectification / replacement. The timing of the outflows is expected to be within a
period of twenty four to forty-eight months.

e Provision for Contingent Liabilities:

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of
past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding
retirement benefits and compensated absences) are not discounted to its present
value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at
the Balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance sheet date and adjusted
to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the
financial statements. A contingent asset is neither recognised nor disclosed in the
financial statements,

3. Recent accounting pronouncements:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the
existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued
from time to time. MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the
existing standards applicable to the company.
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4 - Praperty, plant and equipment (Rs. In Lakhs)
Fraehold Total Peoperty,
Particufars and it Fumiture ang) Vehicles Otfice plant anﬂ"v
(Refer note Buildings Machinery Fixtures Equipment equipment
below)

Original Cost:-
At 31st March 2022 287.49 462.18 754.12 IHASTT[_ 3.43 4.62 1,495.17
Additions . - 271 a7 1194 44.42
Disposals - - (186.20) - - - {185.20)|
At 315t March 2023 287.49 46218 590.63 1290} 3.43 16.56 1,357.39
AdJustments/transfar Inter se - - 194.28 6,73 1.63 38.80 24144
Additions 41.32 159 87 11.36 105 58.56 272.16
Disposals - - (7.53) . 10.49) 12,07} 110.09)f
‘At 315t March 2024 287.49 503.50 937.35 1519 562 113.85 1,860.30
Accumulated deor
At 31st March 2022 - 19.15 228.25 [14.03) 0.85 (1953} 214.69
Charge far the year - 40.28 86.60 3.31 0.57 6.58 137.34
Dlsposals . {178.23) - = -_1 (178,23
At 31st March 2023 59.431 136.62 110.72) 1.42 {12.55) 173.80
Adustments/transfer inter se - 194,28 11.58 1.62 33.94 241.42
Charge for the year 37.16 B6 67 097 041 18.99 144.20
Disposals = . A - 3 B

[ AL 31st March 2024 ~ 95.59 a11.57 L.E3 3.45 39.98 559.42
At31st March 2024 287.49 405.91 518.68 13.36 2.17 JLE7 1.301.48
At 31st March 2023 287.49 40275 454,01 7.82 2.0L 29.51 1,183.59

Note;

During the Financial year 2010-11, the Company had avalled [oan from Andhra Pradesh State Finance Corporation [APSFC} and had submitted the orginat title deeds of the
immavable property (i.. Freehold Land) locatad at Muppireddypally viilage, Toopran measurlng 25 acres. The Company has repaid the loan ta APSFC during financial ycar
2021-22 and APSFC has transferred the original title deeds to Telangana State Industrial Investment Corporation (TSNC), The Company Is in the process of obtaining original
title deeds from TSIC. The Management has obtalned the Statement of Encumbrance on Praperty from the Registration and Stamps Department porta) of the Government

of Telangana

4. Ible {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Computer | New Product| Total {ntanglble
Development assets
Origlnal Cost :-
At 3151 March 2022 552 = 552 |
Additions - 9835 98.35
Disposals - - -
At 31st March 2023 6,52 98.35 104,87
Additions S47 914.86 92033 |
Disposals {1.04) - {1.04)
At 31st Mavch 2024 10.95 1,013.21 1,024.16
Accumulated amortizatlon :-
At 31st March 2022 318 - 3.18
Charge far the year 102 14.47 1549
Disposals . - -
At 315t March 2021 4.20 14.47 18.67
Charge for the year 201 14871 150.72
Disposals - - -
At3st March 2029 .21 163.18 169.39
Net hook value :-
At 31st Mard!_ﬁﬁﬂ 4.74 850.03 854.77
At 215t March 2023 2,32 83,83 86.20
4B, Capital work-ln.propresc {OWIP] apelng tohedule 5 {Rs. tn takhs)
Amcunt In CWIP lor the perod of
Particulars Less than 2 = More than 3 Total
1-2 years 2-3 years
year years
Projects In progvess :
As at 31st March 2024 3.96 - 3,96
As at 31st March 2023 . - -
4. Intangihle dssots undee devnlopment sgeing seh fo ;- fRs. In H_lhsL‘
Amount In Intanglhte assets under development for the
Particulars periodiof Total
Less than 1 12 years 23 years More than 3
year years
Projects In progress |
As at 31st March 2024 10.64 0.91 11.55
A% 3t 313t Mareh 2023 194 172

&
=( cHaRTERED
ACCOUNTANIS)
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5 - Investments

(Rs. In Lakhs)

IParticu!ars

As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Nos. | Amount

Nos. Amount

‘Nan- current {(Unguoted)

investments
Equity shares of Vardhaman (Mahila) Co-Op. Urban Bank Ltd. (at cost) * 500 0.13
{500 shares of Rs. 25 each)
Total - - 500 0.13
*pgaregate carrying value of unquoted investments | - 0.13

|6 - Other financial assets

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Asat b
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
6A |Non-current
(Unsecured, Considered goad)
Security deposits 23.57 21.88
Non-current total 23.57 21.88
6B |Current
{Unsecured, Considered good)
Interest receivable 0.70 0.58
Staff advances 5.16 4.14
Subsidy receivable (Refer note below) 180.06
Less: Provisian for Subsidy receivable (89.27) 90.79 -
Other receivable (Refer note 30) 233,53 -
Current total 330.18 4.72
Total 353.75 26.60

Note: As at 31st March 2024, the Company has an outstanding receivable amounting to Rs 90.79 lakhs (net of provision amounting to
Rs 89.27 lakhs) (as at 31st March 2023 of Rs 57.67 lakhs [net of provision amounting to Rs Nil]) towards subsidy receivable from the
Government under the Faster Adoption and Manufacturing of Hybrid and Electric Vehicles (FAME) - Il scheme. The amount includes
Rs 41.44 lakhs towards claim pending to be filed with Ministry of Heavy vehicles (MH!} for which sufficient time is available as per the
FAME Scheme.
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7 - Other assets {Rs. In Lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2024 | 31st March 2023
7A  |Non-current
Unsecured, Considered good
Income tax receivable 28.19 2.15
Capital advances * 231.61 278.14
Non-current total 259.80 280.29
78 |Current
Unsecured, Considered good
Advances to suppliers 151.00 42.76
Prepaid expenses 7.08 12.66
Balances with Govt Authorities
{includes subsidy receivable of Rs 57.27 lakhs as at 31st March 2023) 150.46 124.72
Current total 308.54 230.14
Total 568.34 510.43
* Includes MSME advances of Rs 13.95 Lakhs (as at 31st March 2023 is Nil)
|8 - Inventories [Rs. In Lakhs)
K As at As at
Particulars 315t March 2024 | 31st March 2023
Inventories {lower of cost and net realisable value)
Raw materials * 861.02 389.20
Wark-in-progress 167.96 51.00
Finished goods 216.83 373.49
Total 1,245.81 813.69

* Includes material in transit of Rs 85.85 Lakhs (As at 31st March 2023 Rs Nil).
Notes:

(1) The cost of Inventories recognized as an expense includes Rs Nil (for the year ended 31st March 2023 Rs Nil} in respect of
write-down of inventory to net realizable value, and has been reduced by Rs Nil {for the year ended 31st March 2023 Rs Nil)

in respect of reversal of such write-downs.
(i) The method of valuation of Inventories has been stated in Note 2.14
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9 - Trade receivables {Rs. In Lakhs)
i As at Asat
faiiaies 315t Mareh 2024 | 21stMarch 2023
Considered good - Secured . .
Considered gaod - Unsecured 71.52 43.27
Trade receivables - credit impaired 505.14 507.40
Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables (expected credit loss allowance) {505.14) {507.40)
Total 71.52 43.27
Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at 31st March 2024 (R, In Lakhs)
' Partleulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Lessthan6 | 6 months-1 1.2 years 24 years More than3 Total
mn_mj\s year years
() [undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 28.66 1.09 24.06 1.50 16.21 7152
(1) |Undisputed Trade Receivables ~ which have significant increase in credit risk - - - . . .
{i#) |undisputed Trade Recelvables ~ credit impaired - - - 2757 477.57 505.14
{iv) |Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - - .
{v) |Disputed Trade Receivables ~ which have significant increase in credit risk - . . ~
(v1) |Disputed Trade Recelvables - credit Impaired . - - - - -
28.66 1.09 24.06 29.07 493.78 576.66
Less: Provislon for doubtful trade recelvables - - - 27.57 471.57 505.14
28.66 1.0 ~24.06 150 16.21 7152
Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at 31st March 2023 (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Ing for fallowing periods {rom due date of payme,
Lessthan6 | 6 months-21 More than3 Total
1-2 years 2-3 years
months ___year years
(1) |Undisputed Trade receivahles—c dered good 167 2273 4.11 14 65 011 4327
) |Undisputed Trade Recewvables — which have significant increase in credit risk - - - . . -
(M) |Undisputed Trade Recelvables - credit impalred . 27.78 7.84 471.78 507.40
(iv) |Disputed Trade receivables — considered gaod - - - - .
(v} |Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - -
{vi) |Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - . - - -
1.67 22713 31.89 22.49 471.89 550.67
Less: Provision for doubtul trade receivables - - 27.78 7.84 471,78 507.40
1.67 22.73 411 14.65 0.11 43.27
10 - Cash and cash equivalents {Rs. In Lakhs)
As at Asat
particulars 315t March 2024 | 315t March 2023
Cash on hand 037 0.04
Unrestricted balances with banks :
Balances with banks in current accounts 89.97 11859
Term deposits with orlginal maturity less than 3 months {free of llen) 257.92 .
Total 344.26 118.63
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|12 - Egininy thave caital (A tn Lakhi)
Particulars As ot 3101 Masch 1014 st M1t Mintch 2023
%o ol st Amoant Ne ot chares Amsenl
A [Authorbied
Equaty shares of Rs. 10 aach 90,000,000 9,000 60 100,000,000 10,000.00
Clyst A Egulty tharesof Ae Leach 100,000,000 106000 ¥ =
Yo 150m0e00 | inooasn| wemopbcen| omnos

B [Hiued, subseribed and fully pald up
Equity 1liires of Rs 10 each 4,974,455 5,497 44 72,353,933 7,235.39
Cave & Equity shares of Rs. § each :

e
Tetal 109,159,204 018039 72,153,540 7,185 38

Notes |
1) During the peewtous year, pursuant to spaclal casolution passed In Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Campany hetd on 25th August 2012, the Company fay
aporoved tnsreass In Aythorised Share Capltal fram Rs 7,500 lakhe to s 10,000 lakhs conslsting of 00,300,090 equity shares of Rs 10 each.

2| Duiring the prewious year, the Board of Directors hraigh restes resolution held gn 3rd March 2023, had giveil consent t rreisvarly the sutheriged capael af ihe|
company from editing 100,000,000 equlty shares af Rs 10 «esch Tnto 100,000,000 dass & equity theres of Rs 1 each and 90,000,000 equety thates f Rs 10 eath
The same has been approved by Ihe memats i the Estraordinery General Meeting held an fith March 2023, { diym aof IMoa]
and Artlcles of Assoclatinn {AQA) was amended on 6th March 2023.

) tssued, Subscribed and Fully pald-up equlty shares : of the sharas atihe beainting and st the end of the reparting yeas :
1. in Lakha]
Fartoulan R i 30 March 362 A ol 310 March 3023
N o sh Amaunt ool haces Amoust

(1} Equiry sharec of e 10 each with wollng rfights

Balances ac ar the beglnning of the year 72,353,933 7,235.39 72,353,933 723539

Add: Issued during the year (Refer note below) 12610582 136208 -

Balance as nt the end of the yesr BALBIRASS B AST.44 72350913 pRIVE ]
111} Class A Equity thares of Rs 1 each whh voting rghts

aalaneet a5 3l the beginning of e year . i .

Add: haurd during the year (Neler 14,194,743 = e

Baiance ax ot Lha end of the yert J4_re4 748 4185 - -
Foral 109262304 [EE] 72353918 1.215.19
Nate:

In stoordance with the farms of the Share Subsesipiien aqreement dated 12th May 2023, and pursuant ta the approval of tha Board of Giectans a1 [is mesting
held on 11th Agrll 2023 and approval of the members at the Exlra Ordinary Generaf Meeting of the Company held on 161l May 2023, the Company has liturd)
and allotted 25% of shareholding of the Company |l.e 1,26,20,522 Equity Shares having face vatue of Rs 10 each at par and 2,42,94,748 Clags A Equity Sharey)
having face value of Re, 1 each at par aggregating s 1,505 lakhs) Lo Greaves Electric Mobility Private Lmited, Post fssue of such equity shares, Greaves [leciris
Mability Prevate Limied haldy S1% healidi by, the Carrpany his become a subsidary of Greaves Electrlc Mosiity Privale Limited w e F 16th Alay’
2023,

b) Rights, preferences and rastrictions alt athed to sharea ©
The Compariy has taa classes of egudy dhames having Lice value af Rs. 10 per share and face value of Rs 1 per share. Both the classes of equity shares rank |
passu In all feipeets inclading voting Hights 2ad i of dividend.

In the event of liquidallon of the Company, the holder of equlty shares will be entitled to receive the ramalning assets of the Company, after distribution of 47}
greferential amounts, if any, [n propertion to the numher of equity shares held by the shareholders

Detalfs.of sharehalde s holding more than 5% shares in the com and ta hald dntalle:

Pardculen A 1 AEPE March 2074 Az at 316 March 7023
Mo ol shres = el M Mo of it % of edding

e 0 Ui Company hakd by each shatehobes holding mute tan S5 thares
Ealhy pald equily drares of Re 10 cach
Gaeves Electric Mability Privele Umitod 31,432,545 28.7% 18,812,023 26.00%
 Aikiih Kacholia 13,101,240 11.99% 13,101,240 1a11%
Param Capital Research Private Limited 4,663,950 7.93% 9,663,950 11 97%
Bengal Finance And Irrvestrent Private Limitod . . 3,695,650 5.10%

l A ahy £ ah

Gt eanes Flecirie Mabaity Pibvate Umiled 24,294,113 22.23% "

&) Detnlly of thated held by Holdlig Company = — |
Particulen s wl 15 March 1004 At 311l March 2023
Noof shates K of Halding lip ol thares % of Helding

Fully pald egully shires o By 10 rach

Greaves Flecurie Babiliny Private limined * 31,432,545 BITH 18,812,023 26.00%
Euldy pald Cluss A eauily shaces of Bs 3 gach

Greaves Dlegitic Mobllity Paivate [imited * 24,294,749 22.23%

“The Greaves Dartric Mobility Private United it the Holding Company for MR AUTO LIMITEO from 16th May, 2023. The Uitimate halding Campainy ' Sreaved
Cotton Umited.

| sharehoiding of ted ©

Asat 3L March 2024

S.No | ter . — [< during th
gmater Name o slabares % o Haiding % Change during the year
Equbty tharcs ol Rz 30 each
1 |Mlekevwara Rao & Family 17,761,500 11 6E% 1581%1

As 0t 310 Maih 3023
Na of shares % al Holdin

S.Na |fdmater Name % Change durlng the year

Eaquity vhares af Ko 10 aath
1 |iskeiwara Nao & Famidy 1. 762508 17.60%

1) Ouring the five years ended 31st March 2024, there were no shares jssued for cansideration other lhan cash by the Cainpany.
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12 - Other equity {Rs. In Lakhs})

As at Asat

[Particulars 315t March 2024 | 31st March 2023

Reserves and surplus

Securities premium (Refer note 1 below} 1,948.48 1,548.48
General reserve {Refer note 2 belaw) 1,411.17 1,411.17
Retained earnlngs (Refer note 3 below) {19,807.86) (17,209.04)

Total (16,448.21) {13,849.39)
Notes

1. Amount received on issue of shares in excess of par value has been classified as Securities premium.

2. General reserve Is created by a transfer of revaluation reserve created in Fnancial year 2009-10 on account of revaluation
of Land representing the gain realised on its subsequent sale in the Financial year 2012-20 and 2020-21.

3. Retained earnings comprise of the Company's undistributed earnings after taxes.

13 - Borrowings {Rs. In Lakhs]
Particulars - e
31st March 2024 | 31st March 2023
13A |Non-current
a. |[Secured
Term Loan From Greaves Finance Limited (Refer note 1 below) - 350.00
Term Loan From Greaves Electric Mobility Private Limited (Refer nate 2 below) 1,300.00 1,030.00
Total secured 1,300.00 1,380.00
b. |Unsecured
Fram erstwhile Directors/Directors and Body Corporates (Refer note 3 below) - 4,266.74
Tatal unsecured - 4,266.74
Total Non-current 1,300.00 5,646.74
138
¢ |Current
|secured
Term Loan From Greaves Finance Limlted (Refer naote 1 below) - 650.00
Term Loan From Greaves Electric Mobllity Private Limited {Refer note 2 below) 1,030.00 -
Total secured 1,030.00 650.00
b. |Unsecured
From erstwhile Directors/Directors and Body Corporates (Refer note 3 below)} 4,266.74 -
Total unsecure: 4,266.74 -
Total Current, 5,296.74 650.00
Grand Total 6,596.74 6,296.74
Notes
1 |Secured Loan from Greaves Finance Limited
Curing the year ended 31st March 2022, the Company has abtatned Secured loan from Greaves Flnance Limited {GFL)
amounting to Rs 1,000 fakhs for purpose of re-financing high cost debt and working capltal. The loan is secured by Exclusive
charge on the Company’s Land situated at Survey number 354, Tooparan, Mupireddypally, Buildings and Movable Plant and
Machlnery.
Interest rate charged : 12.5% p.a.
Terms of Repayment: The same s repayable at end of 2 years from date of disbursement.
During the year ended 31st March 2024, the Company has repaid the entire loan to GFL amounting to Rs 1,000 lakhs
2 |Secured Loan from Greaves Electric Mobility Private Limited
Durlng the year ended 31st March 2023, the Company has entered Into agreement to obtaln Secured loan from Greaves
Electric Mobility Private Limited {GEMPL) amounting to Rs 2,000 lakhs for purpose of working capital requirements and
other business activitles of the Company. The loan is secured by Exclusive charge an Company’s Land sltuated at Survey
number 354, Tooparan, Mupireddypally, Buildings and Mavable Plant and Machinery. Company is in process of creating the
charge in favor of GEMPL,
Interest rate charged is SBI PLR till 30th April 2023 and 12.25% w.e.f 1st May 2023.
Terms of Repayment: Princlpal and interest Is repayable at end of 2 years from date of disbursement.
3 Unsecured loan from erstwhile Directors/Directors and Body Corporates:

Company has obtained an unsecured loan from erstwhile Directors/DIrectors and Body corporates during the year 315t
March 2022 amounting to Rs 4,266 lakhs for purpose of working capital requirements.

Interest rate charged is SBI PLR till 30th April 2023 and 12.25% w.e.f 1st May, 2023

Terms of Repayment: Repayable at end of 3 years from date of agreement (i.e., repayable date is August 2024).
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14 - Other financial liabilities (Rs. In Lakhs)
Partlculars As at s
335t March 2024 | 31st March 2023
14A |Non-Current
Trade advances (Refer note 30) . 750.89
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 46.00 -
Payable on purchase of Property, plant and equipment 10.42
Refundable deposits fram customers - 146.02
Non-current total 46.00 907.33
148 |Current
Trade advances (Refer note 30) 375.44 -
Employee benefits payable 218.91 162.44
Refundable deposits from customers 211,35 -
Payable on purchase of Property, plant and equipment 518.56 -
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 1,326.13 804.14
Other payable 147.35 179.88
Current total 2,797.74 1,146.46
Total 2,843.74 2,053.79
15 - Provislons (Rs. In Lakhs)
As at Asat
Rertieyiuy 31st March 2024 | 31st March 2023
15A rggn-cum:ng
Provision for employee benefits
Compensated absences 16.74 741
Gratuity 21.01 15.12
Non-current total 37.75 22,53
15B [Current
Provision for employee benefits
Compensated absences 36.41 19.27
Gratulty 11.46 5.08
Provision far warranty (Refer note below) 86.37 15.70
Current total 134.24 40.05
Total 171.99 62.58

Note: The company gives warranties for its products, undertaking to repair or replace the items that fail to perform

satisfactorily during the warranty period. Provision made at the year

end represents amount of expected cost of meeting

such obligations of rectiflcation/replacement based on the historical data available. The products are generally covered

under a free warranty period ranging to 12-48 months.

Movement in Provision for Warranty & [Rs. In Lakhs)
As at As at
Particul
atigears 315t March 2024 | 315t March 2023
Dpening balance 15.70 4.37
Add: Provision recognised during the year 121.06 19.52
Less: Amount utilised/reversed during the year (50.39) (8.19)
Closing balance 86.37 15.70
16 - Other liabilitles [Rs. In Lakhs)
As at Asat
i 315t March 2024 | 31st March 2023
16  |Current
Advances from customers 192.18 240.96
Statutory dues 92.19 77.61
Marketings schemes payable 71.46 39.60
Current total 355.83 358.17
Total 355.83 358.17
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17 - Trade payables

{Rs. In Lakhs)

|Particulars psal Asat
315t March 2024 3ist March 2023
Trade payables =
Due to micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note below) 52551 56.63
Other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,973.45 570.37
Total 2,498.95 §27.00 |
(Rs. In Lakhs)!
Asat Asat
Hate 31stMarch2024 | 315t March 2023
Principal amount and interest due:
Principal amount 525.51 56.63
Interest due 219 16.31
Interest pald by buyer In terms of sectlon 16 of MSMED Act, 2006 . -
Amuunt paid beyond the appolnted day 2,039.02 227.64
Interest due and payable to supplier, for payment already made under MSMED Act 31.62 16.31
Amount of Interast accrued and remalning unpald at the end of each accounting year 50.12 16.31
Amount of further interest ining due and paysble even in succeeding years 50.12 16.31
Trade Payables ageing schedule as at 31st March 2024 {Rs. tn Lakhs)
Dutstanding for fellowing periods from due date of payment Total
Unhilled Not due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
- 250.56 274.95 - - - 53551
85.75 569.63 1,224.91 B4.39 212 6.65 1,973.45
(iil) | Disputed dues-MSME - - - - -
{iv)|Disputed dues-Others - - -
85.75 $20.19 1,499.86 $4.39 212 6.65 2,498.96
Trade Payables ageing schedule as at 31st March 2023 {Rs. In Lakbs)
Particulars Q ding for followlng periads from due date of payment Total
Unbilled Not due Less than 1 yoear 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
- 56.63 . - 56.63
)| Others - - 561.88 3.67 4.82 570.37
(i} Disputed dues-MSME - - - - - -
liv){Disputed dues-Others . - - - -
. - » 618.51 3.67 4.82 627.00
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18 - Revenue from operations

{Rs. In Lakhs}

Particulars

Year ended
31st March 2024

Year ended
31st March 2023

ﬂRevenue from operations 8,617.34 4,444.18
Dther aperating revenue - scrap sales 5.25 -
Total 8,622.59 4,444.18

The Company believes that the below table best depicts the disagaregation of how the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenues and cash flows are affected. The Company made sales only to the domestic customers during
the year and previous year. Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligation is within 1 year for both

the years.

Dissggregation of revenue : {Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31st March 2024 | 31st March 2023

Ravenue from sale of goods {Including FAME subsidy, net of provision Rs. 90,80

Lakhs for the year ended 315t March 2024 (Rs. 57.67 Lakhs for the year ended 8,913.40 4,444.18

315t March 2023)

Less: Incentives and schemes 296.04 .

Net revenue from sale of goods 8,617.34 4,444.18

Other operating revenue - scrap sales 5.25 -
Total 8,622.59 4,444.18

The Company's revenue includes Rs 884.26 Lakhs (Rs Nil for the year ended 31st March 2023) which arose from sales to
the Company's largest customer, No other single customer contributed 10 percent or more to the Company's revenue In
either for the year ended 31st Marth 2024 or for the year ended 31st March 2023.

19 - Other income (Rs. In Lakhs)
particulars Year ended ‘Year ended
31st March 2024 | 31st March 2023
Interest income 25.63 0.89
Liabilities no longer required written back - 23.28
Recovery from Allowance for doubtful debts - 17.76
Scrap sales . 43,21
Pravision for doubtful trade receivables written back 2,26 -
Miscellaneous income 0.01 0.04
Total 27.80 85.18
20 - Cost of materials consumed (Rs. In Lakhs)
particulars Year ended Year ended
315t March 2024 | 31st March 2023
Raw materlals consumed
Opening stack 389.20 380.20
Purchases 7,727.21 4,048.73
Less : Closing stock 861.02 389.20
Total 7,255.39 4,039.73
21 - Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress (Rs. In Lakhs)
particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March 2024 | 31st March 2023
Opening Inventoties
Finlshed goods 373.49 130.59
Work-in-progress 51.00 56.51
424.49 187.10
Closing inventories
Finished goods 216.83 373.49
Work-in-progress 167.96 51.00
384.79 424.49
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 39.70 {237.39)
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22 - Employee benefits expense

(Rs. In Lakhs)

particulars Year ended Year ended
315t March 2024 | 31st March 2023
Salaries and wages 795.24 719.44
Contribution to provident funds and other funds 47.62 39.17
Gratuity expense 6.29 6.13
Staff welfare expenses 134.19 69.02
Yotal 983.34 833.76

Employee benefit plans

22A Defined contribution plan

The Company makes Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance scheme contributions which are defined contribution plans, for
qualifying employees. Under the Schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the
benefits. The Company has recognised Rs. 47.24 lakhs {for the year ended 31st March 2023: Rs 30.83 lakhs) as contribution te Provident
Fund. and Rs. 0.38 lakhs (for the year ended 31st March 2023 Rs. 0.84 La

khs) as payment under Employee State Insurance Scheme in the|
Statement of profit and loss. These contributions have been made at the rates specified In the rules of the respective schemes and has been

recognised in the Statement of profit and loss under the head Employee benefits expense.

228 Defined benefit plans
Gratuity
The Company has not funded its gratuity obligations. The following table sets out the status of the defined

recognised in the financial statements as per the Actuarial Valuation done by an Independent Actuary.

Reconciliation of apening and closing bafances of defined beneflt obligations :

benefit schemas and the amount

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March 2024 | 31st March 2023

Opening defined benefit obligation 20.20 30.87
Current service cost 5.00 4,84
Past service cost - B
interest on defined benefit obligation 1.29 1.29
Re-measurement due to: - -
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from changes in financial assumptions 0.13 (1.36)
Actuarial (gains) / fosses arising from changes in demographic assumptions - -
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from experience changes 7.98 (5.24)
Benefits pald (2.13) (10.20)
Closing defined benefit obligati 32.47 20.20
Current 11.46 5.08
Non-Current 21.01 15.12
Movements in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows: (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars gt SS

31st March 2024 | 31st March 2023
Opening fair value of plan assets - -
Employer contributions 213 10.20
{nterest income
Re-measurement gain / (loss):
Return on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net interest expense)
Contributions from the employer . -
Benefits paid (2.13) (10.20)
Closing fair value of plan assets as at year end - -
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Amounts recagnlsed in the Statement of profitand loss in respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows:

[Rs. In Lakhs}
|particutars Year ended Year ended
31st March 2024 | 31st March 2023

Service cost:

Current service cost 5.00 4.84
Past servica cost and galn from settlements - =
Interest on net defined benefit asset 129 129
Components of defined benefTt costs recogni d In profit or loss during the yesr 6.29 6.13
Opening amaunt gnised in other prehensive income : (5.66) 0.94
Re-measurement during the year due to: . -
Changes In financial assumptions 0.13 (2.36)
Changes in demographic assumptions - -
Experience adjustments 7.98 {5.24)
Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets

Closing amount recagnised in other comprehensive income : 2.45 {5.66)
companen!_s of defined benefit {i )/ cast d In other comprehensis 811 (G.GU)l
Jln:ome during the year

The current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included In the ‘Employee benefits expense’ line item in the
Statement of profit and loss. The re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability Is included In other comprehensive income

Actuarial Assumpg
For the year Forthe year
|Particulars ended 31st ended 31st
March 2024 March 2023
Discount rate(s} 7.20% 7.30%
Expected rate(s) of salary increase 7.00% 7.00%
Retirement age and attritian rate (per annum) :
21-30 Yrs 41.00% 41.00%
31-40 Yrs 49.00% 49.00%
41-50Yrs 20.00% 20.00%
JS!.-SS Yrs 12.00% 12.00%

The retirement age of employees of the company is 63 years.

The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account inflation, seniority, promation and other
relevant factar including supply and demand in the employment market. The abave Information Is certified by the actuary The mortality
rates considered are as per the published rates in the Indian Assured Uves Mortality (2012-14) Ult table.

Sensitivity analysls:

Gratulty is 3 lump sum plan and the cost of providing these benefits is typically less sensitive to small changes In demographic assumpticns.
The key actuarial assumptions to which the benefit obligation results are particularly sensitive to are discount rate and future salary!
escalation rate. The following table summarizes the change in defined benefit obligation and impact in percentage terms compared with
the reported defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting perlad arlsing on accaunt of an increase or decrease in the reported
assumption by 50 basis points

|Particutars Dlscount rate Satary Escalstion
Rate

As at 31st March 2024

Defined benefit obligation on increase in 50 bps 31.84 33,12
Defined beneflt obligatian on decrease in 50 bps 3312 3134
As at 31st March 2023

Defined benelit obligation an increase In 50 bps 15 83 20.58
Defined benefit obligation on decrease in 50 bps 20.58 19.83

Projected plan cash flow :

The table below shows the expected cash flow profile of the benefits to be paid to the current membership of the plan based
on past service of the employees as at the valuation date :

{Rs. In Lakhs)
As at As at
turif fil
e prore 315t March 2024 | 315t March 2023
1year to 3 years 3.56 1413
4 years to 5 years 6.50 338
6 years and above 19.28 10.11
The hted average d to the p of these cash flows is 3.95 years As at 31st March 2024 [As at 31st March 2023 Is 3.71

years).
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23 - Finance costs [Rs. In Lakhs}
Year ended Year ended
i 315t March 2024 | 31st March 2023
Interest expenses @
Interest on Unsecured loans 530.87 576.58
Interest on Secured loans 288.97 169.08
Interest on MSME 3381 5.B5
Total 853.65 751.51
24 - Depreciation and amortisation expense {Rs. In Lakhs)
particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March 2024 | 31st March 2023
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 4) 144.20 137.34
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 4A) 150.72 15.49
Total 294.92 152.83
25 - Other expenses (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particutars Year ended Year ended
31st March 2024 | 31st March 2023
Contract labor chargas 397.65 212.52
Power and fuel 182.44 137.29
Rasearch & Testing expenses 54.85 15.68
Repairs and Maintenance :
Machinery 44.72 52.84
Building 4,77 0.85
Others 0.81 7.20
Rent 13.98 135
Rates and Taxes 15.42 23.03
Insurance charges 17.00 221
Travelling and Conveyance 205.70 122.09
Legal, professional and consultancy charges 270.12 157.37
Auditor's Remuneration and out of pocket expenses (refer below note) 8.00 2.70
Advertiserment and sales promotlon expenses 358.68 257.08
Royaity 115.50 -
Warranty expenses 121.06 27.96
Non-compete fee 200.00 200.00
Provision for Subsidy receivable 89.27
Loss on sale/scrap of Property, plant and equipment (net) 11.11 -
Investments written-off 0.13 -
Provision for doubtful financial assets 2.90
Deposit towards contracted business support services written-off - 316.20
IMisceIla neous Expenses 69.43 79.97
Taotal 2,189.64 1,619.24
[Rs. In Lakhs)
particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March 2024 | 31st March 2023
25A |Auditor's Remuneration include:
Statutory audit fees 8.00 2.70
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26 - Exceptional items (Rs. In Lakhs}
articulars Year ended Year ended
e 31st March 2024 | 31st March 2023
Trade advances written back {Refer note below) (375.44) -
Total (375.44)
Note:

In accordance with the terms of the Share Subscription agreement dated 12th May, 2023, Company has written back 50% of Trade
advance amounting to Rs 375.44 Lakhs during the year ended 31st March 2024 which is approved by Board of Directors in the meeting
held on 11th April 2023.

27 - Income Tax:

1 On 20th September 2019, vide the Taxation Laws {Amendment) Ordinance 2019, the Government of India inserted Section 115 BAA in the
Income-tax Act, 1961, which provides domestic companies a non-reversible option to pay Corporate tax at reduced rates effective 1st
April 2019, subject to certain conditions. The Company currently is under the old tax regime of the Income-tax Act, 1961, and hence has
not exercised this option in the current year.

2 The Company has unabsorbed depreciation and business losses available for affset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of unabsorbed depreciation and business losses as it is not considered probable that there will be sufflcient future
taxable profits available.

[Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars pei Asat
31st March 2024 | 31st March 2023
Unabsorbed depreciation 2,185.03 1,894.10
Business loss {Refer note below) 5,451.35 11,387.01
Note:

in connection with the carry-forward tax losses as per the provisions of section 79 of the Income tax Act, 1961, the Company during the
year obtained a tax opinion to evaluate the carry-forward of such losses. Based on such opinion, the Company has re-assessed the carry-
forward tax losses and made necessary adjustments.
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28 - Segment Reporting

The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of the Company examines the performance from the perspective of the Company asa
whole viz. "Automotive Business" and hence there are no separate reportable segments as per Ind AS 108.

29 - Earnings per share

Particul Year ended Year ended
articutars 315t March 2024 | 31st March 2023
Loss attributable to ordinary shareholders for Basic and Diluted EPS - Rs. in Lakhs (2,590.71) {2,630.32)
Weighted average_numbelt of equity sr_uares (face value of Rs. 10 each) used as denominatar 83,388,269 72,353,933
for calculating Basic and Diluted EPS - in Numbers

Weighted average number of class A equity shares (face value of Rs. 1 each) used as 21,241,311

denominator for calculating Basic and Diluted €PS - in Numbers e

Earnings per Equity share of Rs. 10 each:

Basic {in Rs.) (3.03) (3.64)
Diluted {in Rs.) (3.03) (3.64)
Earnings per class A Equity share of Rs. 1 each:

Basic (in Rs.) (0.30) B
Diluted (in Rs.) (0.30) -

Refer Note 11 for detalls of class of equity shares and Rights of equity shares.
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30 - Related party transactions
I Name of the related parties and nature of ielationsh
a) Ultimate Holding company Greaves Cotton Limited from 16th May 2023
b} Helding company Greaves Elestric Mobility Private Limited from 16th May 2023
{¢] Fellow Subsidaries Bestway Agencles Private Umited
Greaves Technolagies Limitod
Greaves Finance Limited
() Enterpciie owned or slgnificantly Influenced by aaushes Investments
oy Managaiment Personne]
7] Key management personnel (KMP) Tinjs Venvatareman (Independent director]
Mada F Shyam dent director) tili 2nd February 2024
Th hath Balakrishnan (Ind dent director) from 2nd February 2024
Sundeep R. Chhabra (Independent diractor)
Nirmal NR {Director]
YV5 Vijay Kumar {Dlrector} tift 16th January 2023
Sanjay Behl from 16th May 2023
Jatindra Dighs ((FO)
{1} Prosnoter and Promater group M. Lokeshwara Rao
Lokesh Machines Limited
B. Kishore Babu
M.Likhitha
1. The followlng table summarkzes related-party transactions and balances for the year ended/as ot 315t March 2024 & for the year ended/ as at31st March 2023
{Previous vear figures are in brackets] [Rs In Lakhs)
Ultimate Holding Enterprises defined | Enterprise defined Promoter and
of transa P
Py nsaction Company b polnt [¢) ahave In paint (] above : Prometer froy fol
Transarton: during e year
tAanogerial remunerstion . . - . 2675 . 226,75
> . : (201.04] a2 [201.04)
sicting fes i ¢ . . 480 5 480
- . 18.50)) - {3.90))
Purchasa of goods 229845 . . - - - 2,2968.46
(1.045.89) . . . . {1,045.85}
|Recetpt of senices - E15.27 3750 . - . 65277
(51.03) (85297 (2,04} - [&1.23) . |484.28)
Interest expandn - 17811 11055 47.43 B 4547 381.93
[50.65) {118 42) 153.52) - 47.23) {262.82)
Aecelpt of loan - 1,300.00 . - - . 1,300.00
- {1,030.00) [350.00} . . . (4,390,001
B of loan - - 1,030.00 - - . 1,000.00
Subsention expanse - . .
{46.50) (46.58)
Services provided - 526 20517 - - . 214.43
- {21.03) . {2103
fresh fsue of shares for cash . 1,505.00 . . - 1,505.00
Cagimi assets purchase {Including Intanglbles) 1500 . . . . - 75.00
150,001 - - . . . {50.00}
Nen-Compets foe - - . - - 100.00 200,00
N a 1200.00)) {a0a.00
Rervalty expense 11550 - - . - . 115.50
Tradi advance wntten back . - . 33150 5150 50.00
Balances as on balance sheet date :
Trade recelvables and other financial assets 253 1198 217.97 - . . 23249
(253} {11.58) - L - . (14.52)
Trade payables and other financial liabilities 903.39 904,78 47.67 526.17 6.28 45231 2,840.60
(240.49)) (9300} 18.25); (521.93] {s.40) [529.43) {4,408 56]
Loan repayable - 2,330.00 . B - 2,330.00
- (1.030.00} 13,000.60]) - . - 12,050,050}
L There i no sccount far fmpafied rrables In reintion 1o ANy oulstanding belances, and no erpenishay heoen fetognized In retpest of impuired raceivables due from ralated parves

Related party relationship Is as identified by the Company on the basls of Information available with the Campany and relied upon by Audlters,
An amaunt of Rs. 90.00 lakhs has been written back durlng the year in respect of debts due to related party.

The above transacttons are complled from the date these parties became related which are accounted in the natural hiead of accounts.

. All transactions with related partles are conducted at arm’s length price under normal course of buslness.

==




MLR AUTO LIMITED
Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

31 - Contingent ilabilities & Commitments

i : Contingent InEl_Iilies {Rs l;_\ial:li:]
As at Asat
Particulars 315t March 2024 | 31st March 2023
Claims agalnst the company/di d llabifitics not ach jped as debts
- Goods and Service Tax appeals 45.15 -
- Other matters [Refer note 1 below] 692.25 69225
Note:

1 Other matters represent the claim amount to Rs. 692 25 Lakhs (As at March 31, 2023: Rs. 692.25 Lakhs) arlsing from an ongoing arbitration case with a Bank in connection
with the buyback of vehicles sold on financing arrangement by the bank. The matter is sub-judice and is likely to be listed for hearlng before the Hon'ble Arbitral Tribunal.

11 : Commitments {Rs in Lakhs)
— Asat Asat
31st March 2024 | 315t Mareh 2023

Particulars

Sstimated amount of contracts remalning to be executed on capital account and not provided for {net of advances of Rs 231.61 Lakhs

91. v
{Pravious year Rs 278.14 Lakhs}). 29LE3 Eo

32 - Financial instruments
32,1 Capital management :
The Campany manages it's capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while maximizing the vafue for shareholders.

ﬂan Categories of financlal instruments :
The slgnificant accounting policles in respect of each class of financlal asset, financial liability and equity instrument Including the criterla for recognition, the hasis of!
measurement are disclosed In Mote 5, 6, 9, 10, 13, 14 and 17 to the financial statements. These notes also mention the basis on which the Income and expenses are

recognized.
(Rs In Lakhs)

. Asat As at
farticulars 315t March 2024 | 315t March 2023
Financlal assets :-

Investments - 0.13
Others financial assets - non current 23.57 21.88
Trade recelvables 71.52 43.27
Cash and cash equivalents 348.26 118.63
Othars financial assets - current 330.18 234.85
Total financial assets measured 9t amortised cost 773.53 418.76
(Financial liabilities -

Barrowlngs 6,596.74 6,296.74
Trade payables 2,498.96 627.00
Others financial liabllities - current 2,797.74 1,544.67
Others financial liabllities - nen current 46.00 929.85
|Totat financial liabifitles measured at amortised cost 11,939.44 9,398.26

The Management assessed that fair values of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade recelvables, other financial assets, trade payables and other financial
liabilities recorded at amortized cost is considered tobe a reasonahle approximation of fair value.

|32.3 - Financial and liquidity risk management objectives:

i. The Campany has a policy of investing surplus funds In fixed deposits with bank.
i, The g2 pay terms of e {trade payables) is in the range of 30-45 days. In case of MSMED creditors the payment terms are within 45 days. Other financial|
liabilities viz. employae pay ts, dealer deposits are payable within one year.

iil. Trade receivablies, Campany has cash and carry policy.

32.4 - Foreign currency risk :
The Company has no direct foreign currency exposure {or its regular transactions. Hence, no forelgn currency risk Is involved.
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31.5 Market risk - interest rate

(1} Liabilities:

The Company's policy is to minimise interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term financing. At 31st March 2024, the Company is not exposed to changes in market
interest rates as the borrowings are at fixed interest rates.

(i) Assats :
The Company's financial assets are carried at amartised cost and are at fixed rate. They are, therefore, not subject to interest rate risk since neither the carrying amount nor|
the future cach flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

32.6 - Credit rlsk management :

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument will fall to perform or pay amounts due to the Company causing financial loss. It arises from
cash and cash equivalents. deposits with banks and financial Institutions. security deposits and principally from credit exposures to customers refating to oulstanding|
recelvables. The Company's maximum exposure to credlt risk is limited to the carrylng amount of financlal assets recognlised at reporting date.

In respect of trade and other receivables. the Company is not exposed to any significant credit risk expasure to any single counterparty or any company of counterparties
having simifar characteristics. The credit risk on recelvables is imited as the nature of the business is advance driven. The Campany has very limited history of customer
default, and considers the credit quality of trade recelvables that are not past due or impaired to be good.

Therefare. the Company does not expect any material risk on account of non performance by any of the Company's counterparties. The credit risk for cash and cash|
equlvalents, bank deposits and security deposits is considered negligible-

32,7 Liquidity risk :

The Company reguires funds both for shart-term operational needs as well as for long-term expansion programs. The Company remains committed to maintaining 3 healthy
liquidity ratlo, deleveraging and strengthening the balance sheet. The Company manages fiquidity visk by maintaining adequate support of facllities from its Holding
Company, and by continuausly monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and by matching the maturity profiles of financlal assets and liabilities, The Company's treasury
department is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition. processes and policies refated to such risks are overseen by senlor
management. The Company's financial lizbility Is represented Signlficantly by long term and short term barrowlngs from Holding Company, erstwhile directors/directors and
body corporates and trade payables.

The table betow provides details regarding the contractual maturitles of significant financlal Nabilities as at 31st March 2024, 31st March 2023

(Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2 years and Total
above

As at 31st March 2024

Borrowings 5,296.74 1,300.00 - 6,596.74
Trade Payable 2,498.96 = . 2,498.96
Other financlal liabilities 2,797.74 46.00 - 2,343.74
As at 31st March 2023

Barrowings 650.00 1,380.00 4,266.74 6,296.74
Trade Payable 627.00 - - 627.00
Orher financial liabilities 1,146.46 90733 - 2,053.79

32,8 Capital management :

The Company's policy Is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investar and creditar to sustaln future development af the business with continuous financ:al
support from its Holding Company {Also refer Note 35).
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33 Financial ratles :
For the year ended | For the year ended
RatiofMeasur Methodolo ch Remarks
bireasire o0 335t March 2024 | 335t March 2023 ange | Jire
On account of Mcrease in cufrent
iabilitias due to certain long-term|
i [ X -51.54 "
(@) Current Ratio Current Assets over Current llabillties 0.21 0.43 51.54% borrowings falling due In FY25 as pef
the terms of borrawings.
b} Debt-Equity Ratlo * Debi over total shareholders' equity NA NA
(¢} Debit Service Coverage Ratio * Profit beflore taxes over debt NA NA
{d} Return on Equity Ratio * profit after taxes over total average equlty NA NA
Al d F I igh
(€] inventory turnover ratio Justed cost of goods sold over average STos 551 28.65% On acl:(llllnt of higher purchases'made
Inventory due to increased volume of business.
Raw { t of sal [
) Trade Recelvables turnover ratio svanue (_m operatlons over average 048 .00 100.00% On account of sa es made to dealers on
trade receivables credit basis.
(On account of higher purchases made
h t b X B
(g} Trade payables turnover ratio Adjusted purchases over trade payables 494 9.17 -46,09% due to Increased vohume of business.
Revenue fi i
[h] Net capital turnover ratio® venug from operations over average NA NA
warking capltal
1) Net profit ratio Prafit after taxes over revenue {0.30) {0.59) -49.24% fue to lncreas? INESvenuefiom
operations during the current year.
{j} Return on Capltal employed * PRIT over average capltal employed NA NA
* Due to negatlve net-vorth,
Notes:
PBIT : Profit before interest and taxes
Capital employed refers to total shareholders equity and debt.
The Code an Soclal Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee beneNts during employ and post-employ benefits receved Presidential assent tn ber 2020, The Code
34  |has been puhlished in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified, The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it
comes Into effect and will record any related impact In the period the Code becomes effective.
The Company has Incurred 3 net loss of Rs. 2,590.71 lakhs during the year ended 315t March 2024 and, as of that date, the Company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
Rs. 8,779.20 lakhs and the Comp has a negative net worth to Rs. 7,707 82 lakhs. Whilst thesa events or conditions may cast significant doubt on the entlty’s ability to
continiie as 4 golng concern, the financial statements have bieen prepared on a basis that there is no material uncertainty on the Company's abifity to continue 25 @ goiNg cancern
35  |considering that the Holding company, Greaves Efectric Mobllity Private Umited has committed 10 extend necessary financial and other support to the Company to meet its finanicial
otilgations a5 and when they fall dua (by infusing funds into the Company, as required) and to not recall the dues payable by the Company to the Holding Company.
Durlng the vear, the Holding Company has infused equity and provided ioans, the operations of the Campany have been scaled up Including \aunches of new models/variants of three
wheeled Vehicles and the Management has prepared lang-term growth plans/\he proposed expansion of operations during FY 24-25.
(i} The C ies {Accounis) A g ts Rules 2022, with effect from August 05, 2022, mandate that the back-up of the books of account and other books and papers of the
lcompany malntained In electronic mode including at & place outside Indla, shall be kepl in servers physically located In India an a daily basis, The Company has malntained dally back-
ups of such books af accounts in servers physically located in india. However, there were no evidence available to demonstrate that hack-up of such bocks was maintained on daily
Lsasis in severs physically located in indla.
{il} As per the proviso to Rule 3(1) of Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014, for the financial year commencing on of after the 1st day of April 2023, every company which uses
Laccounting seftware for maintalning its books of account, shall use only such sccounting software which has a feature of recording audit teail of each and every transactlon, craating
1 |Mmedit Jog of each changa made in the books of account along with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that the audit tralt cannat be disabled.

The Company used TCS ION as its accounting software which is operated by a third parly software service provider for recording all the accaunting transactions vit., sales, purchases,
production/costing, fixed assets, payroll, ather expenses, cash and bank transactions, journal entries and all other general ledger accounting transactions for the year ended March 31,
2024 The audit trail feature of such soltware was not fully enabled throughout the year,

The Management has adequate manual comtrols and certaln IT controls vii, access contrals for critical master dalawhich are pperating, to prevent inoppropriste/unauthorized
1n the books of accaunt. The Management will work towards enabllog edit fogs In the aforesald software in the near future.
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37 |A I

() The Campany does not have any Benaml property,

Lacatton of the

The peried by which

Reasan far delay In

Brief description of the chorge Reglstrar such charge had to registration
be registered
Delay In release of
Holding Company - Borrowing Hyderabad 23-Aug-22 griginal land
documents by TSHC

[iv) The figuees for the corresponding previous year have been regrouped wherever necessary,

where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.
(i} The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off u/s 248(S) of the Companies Act, 2013.

[} The Company does not have any charges of satisfaction which Is yet to registered with the ROC beyond the statutory period except for below :

to make them comparable with the Ng,zues of the current year.
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For and on be: hl‘l;?’ioard of Directors
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K vijaya r
Chalrmdn
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Bangalore

Date; 30th April 2024

JatindhdDighe

Chief Financial Officer

Hyderabad
Date: 30th April 2024
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Niemal NR

Whoaletime Director & CEO
DIN: 10039675

Bangalore

Date: 30th Aprll 2024

Saurabh Jain
Company Secretary
Hyderabad
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